
TOWN OF DAVIE 
AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2012 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 6:20 p.m.  Board members present were Chair Jason 
Hurley, Vice-Chair Dave Parrish, Julie Aitken and Sam Scott [left at 6:40].  Also present were 
Town Administrator Richard Lemack, Vice Mayor Caryl Hattan, Intergovernmental Affairs 
Manager Phil Holste, Jason Curtis, Broward County Property Appraiser’s Office and Board 
Secretary Jenevia Campbell recording the meeting.  Scott Weinstein was absent. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 November 16, 2011 
The Board tabled this item until later in the meeting. 
Motion made by Ms. Aitken, seconded by Mr. Parrish, to approve the minutes of the 

Board’s November 16, 2011 meeting.  In a voice vote, motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. DISCUSSION 
3.1 Batten’s Farm and the Town’s role in securing appropriate treatment from the 
Property Appraiser 
Mr. Lemack stated he and Mr. Holste had worked on a package pursuant to this request 

and they intended to make the request prior to the March 1st deadline.  He provided the Board 
with a copy of the letter he and Mr. Holste had drafted.   

Mr. Lemack said they did not know what the tax assessment would be, but the agreement 
required Dr. Scott to pay the property taxes if the request was unsuccessful, which would require 
another conversation.   

Chair Hurley said their main concern had been that this would be unsustainable if the 
North South Institute must pay the taxes without an exemption.  They argued that the farmers 
market was a community facility with a public purpose.  Chair Hurley said they feared the Town 
was not keeping the March deadline in mind.  Mr. Lemack said he had been monitoring the 
situation.  He stated the result would be a determination of the Property Appraiser.  He felt the 
501(3)(c) would help in moving forward.   

Mr. Lemack indicated that if the decision did not go in their favor, they would need to 
revisit and modify the contract.  He said they were considering asking the Town Council to grant 
another extension.  Mr. Lemack estimated that the Town had probably contributed approximately 
$50,000 toward the restoration of the facilities following the vandalism incident.  The intention 
was to have it returned to the same condition as when the contract was signed in order that it 
would be successful.  

Dr. Scott explained that when they were asked to explore this idea, they had in-house 
counsel request a ruling from the county but there had been no clear position expressed regarding 
how they would treat properties owned by municipalities leased to a non-profit organization.  Dr. 
Scott stated they had put up a $300,000 bond to cover all the projects they were dealing with, 
with the Town, the state and the federal government.  



AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 14, 2012 
PAGE 2 
 

Dr. Scott said in their submission to the Town, they had stated they would spend 
$300,000 in two phases to get the project done and they had exhausted all of the committed 
funds stated in their budget and more.  He stated that the down payment for the two greenhouses 
amounted to $1,930.  The purpose for the greenhouses were to teach children how to grow seeds 
and plant vegetables. 

Dr. Scott said there were two major capital improvements needed right now: lighting and 
signage.  The lighting was needed for safety and the signage should demonstrate the class and 
quality of the enterprise. 

Mr. Lemack reminded Dr. Scott that the Town had not planned or budgeted for capital 
improvements and the Town Council must determine the level of their business arrangement.   

Dr. Scott confirmed that he would request another exemption for six months.  At that 
time he should provide a report on what he had accomplished and what he was seeking going 
forward.  Dr. Scott indicated he would invite Mr. Lemack to visit the property and see for 
himself.   

Dr. Scott left the meeting at 6:40. 
Ms. Aitken said the Property Appraiser had become aware that the Town had some 

properties that were not paying taxes that had leases.   
Mr. Curtis said he was not speaking for the Property Appraiser’s Office, but he had 

visited the property, and in his personal opinion, no part of the property would qualify for an 
exemption.  He said the petting zoo might qualify if the adult goats were sent to market; the palm 
trees planted by a prior owner might qualify as a nursery use; whatever grain was in silage was 
not used to feed the goats and the store may or may not qualify as an improvement. 

  
3.2  Recommendation requesting legal opinions clarifying uses of municipal 
properties by non-governmental entities 
Chair Hurley said discussions should take place regarding the possible tax liability before 

ground was broken and the Town was invested in some other pending projects. 
Ms. Aitken recalled that the Urban Farm Task Force recommendation to have attorneys 

review the proposal for Batten’s Farm had not been presented to the Town Council before the 
RFP was issued.  Mr. Lemack said the Town had already expended money to make Batten’s 
Farm sustainable but if it could not, it would be difficult to bring a capital improvement request 
to Council.   

Vice Mayor Hattan asked what was in the building before Dr. Scott took it over.  Mr. 
Parrish said the building had suffered vandalism, including the air conditioning system, 
refrigeration units and sprinkler pumps.  Mr. Lemack reminded the Board that the Town had paid 
to replace these items.   

Mr. Lemack said if it was determined that some portions of the property were taxable, 
they would need to renegotiate with Dr. Scott.   

Chair Hurley said the Board’s concern was that this issue should be ironed out prior to 
performing some of the proposed improvements, specifically in Leroy Collins Park.  This could 
result in another non-profit that might not be able to afford the liability.  Mr. Lemack stated he 
would work with the Board to ensure this issue did not recur. 

Ms. Aitken did not want Davie taxpayers to pay for someone’s personal use of public land 
that was not entitled to a municipal exemption.  She thought the Property Appraiser would want 
to see the Batten’s Farms books and records. 



AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 14, 2012 
PAGE 3 
 

Mr. Lemack said they must look for sustainable partnerships, and in the future they would 
ask the appropriate questions and do the appropriate legal research so that when the contract 
went forward, everyone would go into it with every question answered. 

Ms. Aitken felt this should happen before money was spent, even in planning.   
 

4. OLD BUSINESS 
4.1 Community Gardens Workshop 
Mr. Parrish said there had been another community gardens workshop the previous week.  

Mr. Holste stated it was his understanding that those in attendance were interested in using land 
in Berman Park for a community garden.  Mr. Curtis advised anyone interested to speak with 
Tom Chancey of SoftScape Nursery in Fort Lauderdale; he was working with the City of Fort 
Lauderdale on community gardens.   

Ms. Aitken and other Board members were aware that other people were concerned that 
the people participating should not be profiting from the gardens, but she did not want to create 
onerous rules.     

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

Chair Hurley announced that the next Urban Farming Initiative Task Force meeting 
would take place February 22.   

 
6. AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 

Results of the Urban Farming Task Force discussion. 
 

7. COMMENTS AND/OR SUGGESTIONS 
There were no comments and/or suggestions made. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 

7:20 p.m.  
 
 
 

_______________________     _____________________________  
Date Approved      Chair/Board Member 


